
1856 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 

May 26, 2009 
 

The Board of Commissioners of Franklin County, North Carolina, met for a Budget Work 

Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Commissioner’s Meeting Room located in the County 

Administration Building with the following Commissioners present: Chairman Robert L. 

Swanson, Vice-Chairman Penny McGhee-Young, Bob Winters, Sidney E. Dunston, 

Donald C. Lancaster, E. Shane Mitchell and Harry L. Foy, Jr.  

 

Chairman Swanson called the meeting to order and turned the meeting over to County 

Manager Angela L. Harris and County Finance Director Chuck Murray.  

 

Mrs. Harris reminded the Board that last year budget requests were reduced from $8.2 

million with another $1.75 million cuts this year. She asked the Board to recall that a 

hiring freeze was implemented in May, 2008 which she said has been beneficial. 

Additionally, department heads have made cuts throughout the year in an effort to save 

money. She added that department heads have been team players in working together 

to bring about these reductions.  

 

Mrs. Harris commented that meetings held early in the year regarding budget 

preparation were helpful and mentioned that today marks the second budget work 

session since the actual budget proposal was distributed. She stated that a public 

hearing on the budget has been scheduled for June 1, 2009 and reminded the Board 

that a budget must be adopted by June 30, 2009. 

 

Next, Mrs. Harris mentioned some recent concerns that could impact the budget such 

as library funding. She stated payments for May and June ($11,000 state aid budgeted) 

were in jeopardy. She also stated that funding is uncertain regarding a $100,000 grant 

for the Radio Frequency Identification program. She also mentioned that ADM and 

lottery monies have been withheld and major impacts of the state budget on education. 

More state and county budget woes are detailed in the PowerPoint presentation below.  

 



1857 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 



1858 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 

 

 
 

Following the Board’s previous budget discussions, changes to the Manager’s proposed 

budget now reflect $2.6 million for engineering fees related to the Jail Expansion 

project. The proposal also includes an additional $92,000 following Commissioner’s 

approval of the Airport Commission’s request to maintain property tax and other 

revenues.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



1859 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 

The chart below highlights revisions to the Manager’s proposed budget. 

 

Manager’s Proposed Budget 

FY 2009-2010 Budgeted Expenditures $63,751,725 

FY 2009-2010 Budgeted Revenues $61,433,025 

Fund Balance Appropriation $2,318,700 

 

Revised Proposal to date 

FY 2009-2010 Budgeted Expenditures $66,444,671 

FY 2009-2010 Budgeted Revenues $61,433,025 

Fund Balance Appropriation $5,011,646 

 

Based on recent revisions to the proposal and using a total General Fund balance of 

$66,444,671, the estimated percentage of undesignated fund balance would be 

11.27%. Fund balance remaining legally available for use in the proposed budget for 

2009-2010 would be $2,170,813, a reflection of levels held in 1998-1999.  

 

According to the presentation, minimum potential budget concerns for FY 2010-2011 

are $6,200,000 which does not include any growth in the budget. This figure is based 

on: 

 

 $2.30 million Fund Balance appropriation 

 $1.25 million Jail Operational and Debt Needs 

 $1.1 million (County only) Debt service for school bond projects 

 $250,000 Career Advancement for employees 

 $500,000 COLA for employees at 3% 

 $402,000 Reverting back the 5 unpaid holidays 

 $400,000 Vehicle Replacements and Capital Outlay 

 

Commissioner Lancaster stated he didn’t feel the Board voted to spend funds toward jail 

expansion at this time. He stated the Board agreed to meet with the Local Government 

Commission on June 4, 2009 to determine its position regarding whether or not the 

County could legally borrow funds for this particular project.  

 

For the record, Commissioner Mitchell stated the Board did not vote in favor of building 

a new jail. He felt it may have been conveyed in the local media that the Board had 

voted to move forward with selling bonds.  

 

Mr. Murray then asked for clarification and stated he and Mrs. Harris were under the 

impression that if the Local Government Commission was in favor of the jail expansion 

project, then the Board would spend $2.5 million. Commissioners Lancaster and Young 

disagreed and stated the matter would have to come back to the Board. Referring to 

action taken May 18, 2009, Commissioner Lancaster said his intent was merely to meet 

with the Local Government Commission to see if they would grant a formal or informal 

“yes” or “no” before proceeding further.  

 

Commissioner Dunston then commented he feels the Board wants to please the 

Federal Marshalls, but then won’t commit to building the jail. His impression of the May 

18, 2009 vote was that the Board was approving to spend the money if approval was 

granted from the LGC. Otherwise, he said, there would be no reason to meet with the 

LGC. He felt the Board communicated that pending LGC approval, it was ready to “step 

up to the plate” and raise taxes if needed to cover the project.  

 



1860 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 

Commissioner Young disagreed and stated what she voted for was to get a notion from 

the LGC before coming back to the Board of Commissioner for final consideration.  

 

Commissioner Dunston stated the Board must make a decision whether or not the 

County wants the income from the federal government and build the jail or to let them 

know the County is not interested so they can move forward into looking into another 

location to house their inmates.  

 

Mrs. Harris stated she wanted to clarify that the Board selected Brennan and Associates 

to do the study. Brennan did the study and came back with the recommendation that the 

County needed 331 additional beds. Administratively, she said she and Sheriff Pat 

Green discussed a lower number of beds in the event the 331 was not approved and if 

there was difficulty demonstrating our local need. They then looked at a 224 bed 

expansion the Sheriff said he could “live with.” She indicated she had asked Todd 

Davis, Brennan and Associates, for some feedback on that idea. She said Mr. Davis 

indicated operating costs might be reduced some, but because of the fixed costs that 

we have, the reimbursement may not necessarily cover all the costs. She feels the 

Board must determine local responsibilities in terms of jails and if we and/or Brennan 

and Associates can demonstrate that we need a 331 bed expansion project the LGC 

will entertain it, but not just as an opportunity for the County to make a profit and 

generate excess revenue because that’s not the County’s mission.  

 

Commissioner Winters then asked if there was actually another opportunity or another 

county that would be able to accept the federal inmates being that most counties are in 

the same financial situation currently. Commissioner Dunston responded by saying that 

he doesn’t know what other county’s have, but he said the Federal Marshall’s have 

made it clear to him that they like Franklin’s location and they are willing to work with us 

as long as we are willing to work with them. He said the moment they feel Franklin 

County is not sincere about its intentions, they will pull the plug and go where they want 

to go.  

 

It was also mentioned that in the budget proposal, travel budgets were decreased 31% 

with only minimums left in travel budgets for the year. Other topics discussed were the 

proposed five unpaid holidays, school construction projects and the temporary 

suspension of career advancement. Requests not included in the budget are a 

$133,000 request from the Town of Louisburg and a new county complex.  

 

Commissioner Lancaster stated the Board needs to be committed to reinstating some of 

these programs when financial times are better. He stated the importance of keeping 

quality employees and that measures affecting travel, holidays and career advancement 

should be reexamined as soon as it is possible.  

 

Mrs. Harris also stated the County should conduct a salary study. That last study was 

completed in 2003. She said an updated pay plan is needed as well as implementation 

of recommendations that come from the plan.  

 

Mr. Murray then stated this is the last year the Board will be able to rely on fund 

balance. He said deficits next year would have to be made up with more cuts or 

additional revenue from some other source.  

 

Mrs. Harris mentioned the Early College Program and said funding for the program was 

not included in the proposal. Commissioner Dunston stated his belief in the importance 

of the program. The Board indicated it would like to obtain more information from Randy 

Parker, Vance Granville Community College President, on the specifics of the program.   



1861 

May 26, 2009 Minutes 

Mrs. Harris also mentioned there is a proposal being discussed now in the House 

subcommittee to return the responsibility for enforcement of child support to counties. In 

years past, she said she felt the program could have been a revenue generator. Now, 

she said the program is likely not financially beneficial and stated she has attempted to 

contact Representative Lucy Allen to express her concerns.  

 

Staff indicated the bid date for school construction projects has been changed to June 

3, 2009 at 3:00 P.M. at the office of Doug Moore, Franklin County Schools. The original 

date was May 28, 2009.  

 

Following the presentation, Commissioner Swanson stated the Board must face difficult 

decisions but said he felt none should be made until after the public hearing on June 1, 

2009.  

 

Commissioners Swanson, Dunston and Lancaster indicated they will join Mrs. Harris 

and Mr. Murray at 1:30 P.M. for a meeting with the LGC to informally discuss jail 

expansion.  

 

Mrs. Harris concluded the meeting by stating her concern that the County has become 

too reliant on fund balance over the years. She also stated that human capital is the 

most important asset of the County as 450 County employees deliver services each 

day. She said everyone has stood shoulder to should despite difficult times.  

 

Chairman Swanson adjourned the meeting, with a meeting of the Board of Equalization 

and Review to follow.  

 

 

 

              

Robert L. Swanson, Chairman                   Kristen G. King, Clerk to the Board 

 


